BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE CABINET

WEDNESDAY 7TH MARCH 2018
AT 6.00 P.M.

COMMITTEE ROOM, PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE

MEMBERS: Councillors G. N. Denaro (Leader), K.J. May (Deputy Leader),
B. T. Cooper, M. A. Sherrey, C. B. Taylor and P. J. Whittaker

AGENDA

1. To receive apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm
the nature of those interests.

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on
21st February 2018 (Pages 1 - 4)

4, Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 12th
February 2018 (to follow)

(@) To receive and note the minutes

(b) To consider any recommendations contained within the minutes (it
should be noted that the recommendations in respect of the Medium
Term Financial Plan were considered at the Cabinet meeting held on
21% February 2018).

5. Air Quality Management Area - Kidderminster Road, Hagley - Potential
Revocation (Pages 5 - 48)

6. Performance Report (Pages 49 - 62)



7. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until
the next meeting

K. DICKS
Chief Executive
Parkside
Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

27th February 2018



Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Access to Information

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain
documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.

» You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information.

» You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before
the date of the meeting.

» You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.

» You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date
of the meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.

» An electronic register stating the names and addresses and
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of
all Committees etc. is available on our website.

» A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards.

» You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers
concerned, as detailed in the Council’'s Constitution, Scheme of
Delegation.

You can access the following documents:
» Meeting Agendas
» Meeting Minutes

> The Council’s Constitution

at www.bromsagrove.gov.uk



http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

Cabinet
21st February 2018

BROMSGROVEDISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE CABINET

21ST FEBRUARY 2018, AT 4.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors G. N. Denaro (Leader), K.J. May (Deputy Leader),
B. T. Cooper, M. A. Sherrey, C. B. Taylor and P. J. Whittaker

Observers: Councillor L. C. R. Mallett

Officers: Mr. K. Dicks, Ms. J. Pickering, Mrs. C. Felton and Ms. A. Scarce

89/17 TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

90/17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.
91/17 MINUTES
The minute of the meeting held on 7" February 2018 were submitted.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 7™
February 2018 be approved as a correct record.

92/17 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
BOARD HELD ON 12TH FEBRUARY 2018

The Leader welcomed the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Board
and invited him to present the minutes, which were included within the
supplementary agenda pack dated 19™ February 2018.

Councillor L. C. R. Mallett, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Board explained that it was an extract from the minutes, which had been
prepared following the Board’s recent meeting. The lateness of these
reflected the challenges faced in the budget round this year. There were
four main areas of discussion and the Board had been grateful for the
attendance of Heads of Service. Councillor Mallett summarised each of
the recommendations and explained the thinking behind each one.

The Portfolio Holder, Finance and Resources thanked Councillor Mallet

for attending and provided the following response to each
recommendation:

Page 1



Agenda Iltem 3

Cabinet
21st February 2018

a) The amended table within the report for consideration at this
evening’s meeting reflected the comments with the pressures
shown cumulatively every year.

b) There was a difficulty in this as the Council had not had the
options appraisal and therefore was unable to ring fence
something which was not known at present. It was likely that this
would be included in next year when the detailed information had
been made available. The Executive Director, Finance and
Resources advised that it was her understanding that the building
would cost approximately £2m with additional costs for other
associated works. It would not be appropriate to ring fence
figures which were unknown at this time. Consideration would be
given to this once the options appraisal had been received. The
Leader further commented that the impact of the negative tariff
arrangements in the future would also potentially impact on any
decisions. Members discussed whether there was some way in
which this could be flagged up and it was noted that there was
reference to it within paragraph 3.10.2 of the report.

c) In respect of the Management Team model scenarios, it was
agreed that consideration needed to be given to all models and
this would be reviewed in the coming year. The Executive
Director, Finance and Resources added that the Council was
constantly looking at different models and would, if needed,
include the review of the shared service agreement. The Leader
confirmed that work was being carried out around the risk
element and any that was identified would be considered through
either the Finance and Budget Working Group or the Overview
and Scrutiny Board. Work was also being carried out as part of
the commercialisation agenda.

d) It was explained that that the Council had to make a judgement in
respect of monies received and if the planning application fees
were not included it was likely that the Council would be criticised
by the Auditors for receiving a windfall, therefore the
recommendation could not be agreed. The Executive Director,
Finance and Resources confirmed that she would speak to the
relevant officers to establish whether there was a more “scientific”
form of modelling in respect of the larger planning applications to
ensure a similar situation did not arise in future years.

RESOLVED:

1) That the budget table as presented in the Medium Term Financial
Plan reflects the cumulative position over the four years for
unavoidable and other cost pressures; and

2) That the Management Team model scenarios in relation to
shared service exist arrangements, due to financial sustainability,
to include alternative wider options.

Page 2



Agenda Iltem 3

Cabinet
21st February 2018

93/17 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2018/19 - 2021/22

The Executive Director, Finance and Resources introduced the report
and explained to Members that it was similar to that which had been
considered at the Cabinet meeting on 7™ February, with a small number
of changes. These included the unexpected withdrawal of funding of
£25k by Worcestershire County Council (WCC) in respect of reception
demand. As this had been such short notice WCC had agreed to pay for
April/May but following that it would be withdrawn. The main change
however was in respect of borrowing as detailed on page 16 of the
additional papers. Members were reminded that the £20m borrowing
was in in respect of the Investment and Acquisition Strategy which had
recently been agreed and there was a potential to borrow this over the
next 4 years. Similarly the income from that had been spread over a
period with a break even return rate being used. It was hope that this
would be exceeded and if so would generate an additional £250k, but
this could not be guaranteed.

In respect of the Council Tax resolutions, Members were informed that
unfortunately the Council was reliant on receiving the information from
the other preceptors and that the one Parish Council preceptor had sent
the information in later than the deadline. It was general that the
resolutions were sent later than the main reports due to waiting for
precepting bodies.

Following presentation of the report Members discussed the removal of
funds from WCC in respect of the reception support provided. It was
explained that this included telephone enquiries and face to face visitors.
WCC have advised that officers should simply sign post in future.
However Members discussed that it was our responsibility to
satisfactorily respond to any enquiries and the Portfolio holder confirmed
that as a consequence of this he would be arranging for a record to be
kept of contacts which were purely WCC based in order to have
supporting data should the need arise to go back to WCC to discuss the
issue further.

It was noted that there was a slight error in the number of the
recommendations and it was agreed that these would be re-numbered
2.1. 4 a) and b). It was agreed that as there had been a number of
amendments made to the reports and these had also been issued as to
follows there would be an adjournment at the Council meeting in order to
allow members time to consider the reports and is necessary for the
Executive Director, Finance and Resources to take them through these.

RECOMMENDED:

2.1.1 that the additional income / efficiencies as attached at
Appendix 1 be approved:
2018/19 £ 580k
2020/21 £ 53k
2021/22 £272k

Page 3



Agenda Iltem 3

Cabinet
21st February 2018

21.2 that the unavoidable pressures as attached at Appendix 3
be approved:
2018/19 £ 540k
2019/20 £ 346k
2020/21 £200k
2021/22 £200k

2.1.3 that the Revenue bids as attached at Appendix 2 be
approved:

2018/19 £165k

2019/20 £15k

2020/21 £15k

2021/22 £15k

2.1.4(a) that the Capital Programme bids ( to exclude the energy
efficiency programme) as attached at Appendix 4 be
approved:
2018/19 £1.293m
2019/20 £999k
2020/21 £1.940m
2021/22 £1.245m

2.1.4(b) that the unavoidable Capital Bids in relation to the energy
efficiency programme be approved:
2018/19 £110k
2019/20 £110k

2.1.5 that the funding from balances be approved :
2018/19 £ 9k

2.1.6 that the Increase of Council Tax by 2.99% (£6.29 pa) per
Band D equivalent for 2018/19 be approved

2.1.7 that the budget savings and pressures for 2018/19-2021/22
are subject to change due to the potential impact of
changes to service delivery and the localisation of
Business Rates together with any future changes to New
Homes Bonus.

2.1.8 that following the decision at Council on 24" January 2018,
the sum of £80k be made available from balances to fund
potential Hardship cases in relation to Council Tax Support
in 2018/19.

2.1.9 that the Council Tax resolutions for 2018/19 as attached at
Appendix 5 be approved.

The meeting closed at 4.31 p.m.

Chairman

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 7" March 2018

Air Quality Management Area — Kidderminster Road, Hagley

Relevant Portfolio Holder ClIr Peter Whittaker
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes

Relevant Head of Service Simon Wilkes

Ward(s) Affected Hagley East

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted ClIr. Colella, Clir. Jenkins
Non-Key Decision

This report contains exempt information as defined in Paragraph(s) of Part | of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

1.1  Areview of Hagley air quality monitoring has been undertaken in relation to the
Kidderminster Road, Hagley Air Quality Management Area to ascertain whether
the area can be revoked based on historical monitoring data and current trends
and levels. The reasons for the proposal are set out in the accompanying report
entitled “Kidderminster Road, Hagley, AQMA Revocation Screening
Assessment” of November 2017

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Cabinetis asked to RECOMMEND that the Kidderminster Road, Hagley
AQMA, be revoked.

2.2 Air Quality will remain an important high profile issue in the area and
monitoring will continue to ensure air quality objectives continue to be
met. During consultation with Bromsgrove District Council Planning Department
the wider location will continue to be considered as an “air quality consultation
zone” where the impact on air quality is given due consideration through the
planning process. In addition WRS will continue to be involved in the
development of measures throughout the wider Bromsgrove District as per the
Air Quality Action Plan.

3. KEY ISSUES

Worcestershire Regulatory Services has observed that annual average levels of
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO,) within the Hagley monitoring network has fallen below
the national objectives that require the adoption of an air quality management
area.

In light of these findings WRS undertook an assessment of historical data for all
monitoring locations in the area and confirmed that there is a general decrease
in the trend of NO, levels since monitoring began in 2001. Concentrations have
been recorded as below the national objective by a factor of 10-15% within the

AQMA over the last 3 years. Full details of the findings can be seen in appendix

Page 5



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 7" March 2018

1 “Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA Revocation Screening Assessment’ dated
November 2017”.

The prime function of AQMA'’s are to facilitate the creation of air quality
management plans and the delivery of air quality improvements. Such plans
invariably provide fringe benefits such as improved traffic flow however AQMA’s
are complementary to the development of local transport plans and do not
provide a vehicle for the delivery of highways management initiatives that fall
beyond the scope of delivering compliance with government air quality
objectives.

DEFRA’s Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance (PG16) and Technical
Guidance (TG16) (April 2016) provides information on the revocation of an
AQMA. Section 4.9 of PG16 states that ‘For revocation this should demonstrate
that air quality objectives are being met and will continue to do so... typically this
is after three years or more compliance’. Section 3.47 of TG16 states ‘an AQMA
may be amended or revoked following a screening assessment or on the basis
of robust monitoring evidence’. An AQMA Revocation Order is required to
officially revoke an AQMA.

Financial Implications

3.1 None

Legal Implications

3.2  Part IV of the Environment Act 1995, the Local Air Quality Management process
(LAQM) and subsequent Policy Guidance (LAQM.PG16) and Technical
Guidance (LAQM.TG16) documents set out the duty of local authorities to review
and assess local air quality within their areas against a set of health based
objectives and work to improving poor air quality identified. The Objective of
most importance to the Council is the annual mean nitrogen dioxide (NO2)
objective which should not exceed 40 microgrammes per cubic metre of air at
the fagade of a residential dwelling or school.

3.3  Poor air quality in general can affect peoples’ health, playing a role in many
chronic conditions such as cancer, asthma, heart disease and neurological
changes linked to dementia. Outdoor air pollution contributes to about 40,000
premature deaths per year in the UK (Royal College of Physicians & Royal
College of Paediatrics and Child Health, 2016). Nitrogen Dioxide in particular is
known to cause respiratory illnesses and possibly increase the risk of lung
infections. Young children and asthma sufferers are most sensitive to this
pollutant.

3.4  Where there is robust evidence to demonstrate that the Objective is being met

and will continue to be met an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) can be
revoked (LAQM.TG16). The decision to revoke an Air Quality Management Area

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 7" March 2018

can be taken either following a detailed study or following a screening
assessment based on robust monitoring evidence.

Service / Operational Implications

3.3 None

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

34 None

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1  Low — robust monitoring data indicates that air quality objectives within the area
are being met.

5. APPENDICES

Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA Revocation Screening Assessment’ dated
November 2017.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

DEFRA'’s Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance (PG16) April 2016
DEFRA'’s Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance (TG16) April 2016

7. KEY

AQAP — Air Quality Action Plan

AQMA — Air Quality Management Area
AQO — Air Quality Objective

LAQM — Local Air Quality Management
NO, — Nitrogen Dioxide

NOy — Nitrogen Oxides

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Stephen Williams
email: Stephen.williams@worcsregservices.gov.uk
Tel: 01562 738090

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Worcestershire

Regulatory Services
Supporting and protecting you

Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA
Revocation Screening Assessment

In fulfilment of Part IV of the
Environment Act 1995
Local Air Quality Management

November 2017

Page 9

Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA Revocation Screening Assessment



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Local Authority .
Officer Stephen Williams
Department Land & Air Quality Team
Wyre Forest House
Finepoint Way
Address Kidderminster
Worcestershire
DY11 7WF
Telephone 01905 822799
E-mail wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk
Report Reference | iy Al EY/REV/2017
number
Date November 2017
Page 10

Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA Revocation Screening Assessment



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Executive Summary

This report has been produced on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council (BDC) and
represents a screening assessment of air quality at the Kidderminster Road, Hagley Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA). The assessment has been carried out to determine
whether the Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA can be considered for revocation. The
assessment has not included a detailed dispersion model as available monitoring data is
sufficient to provide a robust review of nitrogen dioxide levels at the AQMA over the past
fifteen years. All available monitoring data held for the area from 2001 to 2016 has been

reviewed.

Levels of nitrogen dioxide measured between 2001 and 2016 have generally followed a
downward trend year on year discernible when viewed over the long term. There have only
been three marginal exceedances of the NO, annual mean objective at relevant exposure
observed in the past ten years (in 2007, 2010, and 2013).

It is considered to be very unlikely that a consistent exceedance of the nitrogen dioxide
annual mean objective over future years will occur, as demonstrated by the lack of consistent
exceedances between 2001 and 2016 and a consistent downward trend in NO,
concentrations across that same period. It is therefore recommended that the Kidderminster

Road, Hagley AQMA is revoked following the necessary statutory consultation.

Page 11



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Table of Contents

EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ..oiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eee s 1
1 TN oo 1¥ [o3 1 o o R RUPPPPRT 4
2 Background to the Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA.........ccccooiiiiiiiiinnnnns 6
3 Detailed ReVIEW Of Data.........coooeeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee 9
3.1 AIr QUAlIty MONITOTING ...oeeeeeiiee e e e e e e e e e 9
3.2 Monitoring Data and Long-term TrendsS ............ueeiiieeriiieiiiiee e 12
3.3 RESUIS DISCUSSION ...t eee et e e e ettt e e e e e e e e eeaatea e e e eeeeeeenees 24
4 Conclusions and Recommendations .......cooooveeeeiiieeeeee e 26
Appendix A: Summary of Statutory Air Quality Objectives in England............. 31
A.1 — Air Quality Objectives in ENgland.............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 31
Appendix B: Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA Sealed Order ...........ccceen...... 32
Appendix C: Diffusion Tube MONItOriNg .....ccoovvviiiiiii e 34
C.1 Details of Non-Automatic MoNitoring SIteS............cccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee 34
C.2 Monitoring Data 2001 — 2016 .......ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 36
GlOSSANY OF TEIMNS L.ttt 37
] =T =T o S 38

List of Tables

Table 1.0 Details of all locations monitored for NO, in Hagley area .........ccoooeeeeeiviiiiiiieeneenn., 10
Table 2.0 Monitoring results of NO, at location 2001 - 2016..........cccovvriiiiieeieeeeieiiicee e, 13
Table 3.0 Number of exceedances of NO, annual mean AQO..........oovvviiiiiiieeeiiiiiiiieee e, 14
Table 4.0 Number of NO, concentrations observed within 5% AQO .........ccccevviieieiiiiiieeeeennnn. 14
Table 5.0 Revocation requirements LAQM.PG(16) & LAQM.TG(16) ......vvceeeeeeeririiiiiiiieeeennn, 27

List of Figures

Figure 1.0 Map of monitoring locations and AQMA boundary .............cccoovvviiieeeieeeeiiiiiiinn. 11
Figure 2.0 Monitored annual mean NO, at all [0cationS .............coviviiiiiiieriii e 16
Figure 3.0 9/a/b monitored annual MEaN NOj..........uuuuuiuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieereeeeerree 17
Figure 4.0 11 monitored annual Mean NO; ........cciiiiiiiiieiieiie e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e ees 17
Figure 5.0 10 monitored annual Mean NO; ........coociiiiiii i e e e e e e e e e e eeae 18
Figure 6.0 KR62 monitored annual Mean NOj............uuuuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieieneeneeeeees 19
Figure 7.0 8 monitored annual MEan NO; ..........uuuuuuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeee e 19
Figure 8.0 HL monitored annual mean NO;........cccciuuuiiieiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e 20

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Figure 9.0 RES 1 - 4 monitored annual mean NOg ............uuuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieeieiene. 20
Figure 10.0 7 monitored annual Mean NOg .........coiviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 21
Figure 11.0 KR monitored annual mean NOag...........ouuiiiiiiiieeiiieiee e 21
Figure 12.0 KR2 monitored annual mean NOo............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiees e 22
Figure 13.0 Highest monitored annual mean NO; ........ccooiieiiiiiiiiiiiii e 24
Figure 14.0 Highest, lowest and average values COmMpariSON .........cccoeeeevveeviviinneeenereeiiiinnnnn 25

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

1 Introduction

This report has been produced on behalf of Bromsgrove District Council (BDC) and
represents a screening assessment of air quality at the Kidderminster Road, Hagley Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA) between 2001 and 2016. The assessment has been
carried out to determine whether the AQMA can be considered for revocation. The
assessment has not included a detailed dispersion model as available monitoring data is
sufficient to provide a robust review of nitrogen dioxide levels at the Kidderminster Road
AQMA over the past fifteen years.

The policy framework for air quality management in the UK is set out in The Air Quality
Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland (Defra, 2007). The Strategy
provides air quality standards and objectives for key pollutants designed to protect human
health and the environment. The Strategy also sets out how local government can contribute
to achieving the air quality objectives. The Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) regime is
set out in the Strategy and requires every local authority to carry out regular reviews and
assessments of air quality in its area to identify whether the air quality objectives have been,
or will be, achieved at relevant locations by the appropriate dates. Where air quality
objectives are not being met the local authority must declare an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) and produce an action plan to identify appropriate measures that can be taken

in pursuit of the objectives.

The Air Quality Strategy (Defra, 2007) sets out air quality standards and objectives for key
pollutants. The standards are set as concentrations below which health effects are unlikely,
or below which risks to public health would be very small (even in sensitive population
groups). The air quality objectives only apply where “relevant exposure” exists, that is
where members of the public are likely to be regularly present for the duration of the
averaging time of the objective. For annual mean objectives relevant exposure is limited to
residential proprieties, school and hospitals. The 1-hour objective applies to residential
properties, schools and hospitals as well as any outdoor location where members of the
public might reasonably be expected to stay for 1 hour or more, such as outdoor seating
areas at eating establishments, parks, busy shopping streets etc. The statutory air quality

objectives applicable to LAQM in England can be found in Table A.1 in Appendix A.

Technical Guidance for LAQM (LAQM.TG.16) sets out the approach for LAQM. When an

exceedance of an air quality objective has been identified the local authority is required to

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

declare an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). LAQM.TG.16 and LAQM.PG.16 also sets

out the requirements for when an AQMA may be revoked.

Page 15



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council
2 Background to the Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA

The Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA was declared by BDC on the 17th February 2010. A
copy of the sealed order, including a location plan, can be found in Appendix B. The AQMA
was declared following a detailed assessment carried out in July 2009 that was undertaken
due to monitored exceedances of the annual mean objective for NO,. This assessment
included detailed dispersion modelling utilising ADMS Roads dispersion model (2.3). This
assessment made recommendation for declaration of the AQMA based on predicted
exceedances of the annual mean objective at locations of relevant exposure. There was also
a recommendation for installation of an automatic air quality monitor to provide more robust

monitoring data.

Since declaration of the AQMA in February 2010 monitoring of NO, levels has continued
using a network of diffusion tubes. An automatic monitor was also in operation between June
and December 2010.

A countywide action plan for Worcestershire was produced covering all AQMAs within the
County and formally adopted in the autumn of 2013. This identified many potential air quality
solutions for each AQMA that were split between generic actions applicable to all areas and
specific actions for each AQMA. With this in mind WRS conducted a “priority actions”

process in 2014 for each AQMA including Hagley.

Source apportionment of roadside emissions of NO,, carried out as part of the Further
Assessment in 2012 following declaration of the AQMA, identified the dominant sources to
be traffic related emissions and background concentrations. The source apportionment
helped identify key areas to be addressed and enabled prioritisation of measures in a
targeted fashion. Details of the prioritisation methodology can be found in the full Air Quality
Action Plan for Worcestershire (September 2013) document and the Air Quality Action Plan
for Worcestershire Progress Report 2013-2015 (October 2015), both available online at

http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/environmental-health/pollution/air-quality/airquality-

action-plan.aspx

The prioritised actions for Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA are listed below:-

. KR5 - Review of signalised junction at foot of Hagley Hill of A456 and A491
. 5.1.1 - Alteration of phasing of traffic light systems

Page 16


http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/environmental-health/pollution/air-quality/airquality-action-plan.aspx
http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/environmental-health/pollution/air-quality/airquality-action-plan.aspx

Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

. 5.1.8 - Introduction of traffic signals at Hagley Island roundabout
. 5.1.4 - Variable Messaging Systems
. 5.2.2 - Freight Quality Partnership

Progress made with these actions is as follows:-

5.1.1 and KR5 — Alteration of the phasing of traffic light systems / Review of signalised
junction at Kidderminster Rd/Birmingham Rd/Stourbridge Rd Junction - Worcestershire
County Council has confirmed that this action has been completed: The signal set controller
apparatus was updated on 20/04/2015 to MOVA which gradually optimises the signals
operation according to observed demand. WCC further advised in July 2016 that ‘The
equipment at Hagley is the very latest technology, so further investment in signalling
infrastructure here is not required’ and ‘traffic flow is starting to settle down now in Hagley,

which suggests that the signal calibration process is nearing completion’.

5.1.8 — Introduction of signals at roundabouts - Worcestershire County Council has
confirmed this action has been completed: “Developer led reconstruction of the Hagley
Roundabout (A456/A491) with signals was opened to the public on the 22/01/2015. Minor
alignment revisions were made to lining / destination lining on the 06/03/2015. Revisions
were made to the A491 northbound access onto the roundabout on the 21/08/2015. Each set
of signals is operating using MOVA (WCC June 2015).”

5.1.4 — Variable Messaging Systems to redirect vehicles away from AQMA (and other
relevant messages) - No progress at this time: In October 2015 Worcestershire County
Council confirmed plans to install Variable Messaging Systems (VMS) signs across the
County. The strategy is to complete a ring of VMS signs around Worcester City in 2016 then

replicate this in Bromsgrove and Kidderminster areas as funding is identified.
5.2.2 — Freight quality partnership - On-going: This action is designed to encourage freight
vehicles to avoid the AQMA and find alternative routes. Further discussion with County

Highways in 2014 identified two separate approaches:

1) Use of paper HGV route maps is now outdated, work should focus on updating data with

Sat Nav companies to ensure route planning avoids AQMAs.

Page 17



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

2) A wider FQP that potentially restricts HGV access to AQMAs could form part of a wider
Transport Strategy for Worcester. In 2015 Worcestershire County Council confirmed they

provide update information for Sat Nav technology providers on an on-going basis.

Other non-priority actions have been progressed as part of district or countywide initiatives.
These are detailed within the Air Quality Action Plan Progress Report for Worcestershire
April 2015 to March 2016 available online at

http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/media/2294583/WRS-AQAP-Progress-Report-2015-
16.pdf.

Levels of measured NO, between 2001 and 2016 have generally followed a downward trend
year on year with only three measured exceedances of the NO, annual mean objective at

relevant exposure observed in the past ten years (in 2007, 2010 and 2013).

Page 18


http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/media/2294583/WRS-AQAP-Progress-Report-2015-16.pdf
http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/media/2294583/WRS-AQAP-Progress-Report-2015-16.pdf

Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

3 Detailed Review of Data

3.1  Air Quality Monitoring

BDC undertakes air quality monitoring of nitrogen dioxide (NO;) across the district using non-
automatic passive diffusion tubes. In 2016 monitoring was undertaken using 12 diffusion
tubes in the Hagley area at 10 locations. 7 of these were located within the boundary of the
AQMA, and 3 outside. Monitoring point 9/a/b is a triplicate location (three diffusion tubes
located together). Data is also held for three historic monitoring locations that have since
been discontinued and for the automatic air quality monitor in operation in 2010. All available
monitoring data held in and around the Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA has been subject

to review.

The data range held spans from 2001 up until 2016, presenting a long history of monitoring
data. Some monitoring points present more reliable data than others based on location. An
overview and assessment of data from each location is presented later in this report. All
available data has been reviewed as part of the assessment.

Details of all monitoring locations are presented in table 1.0 below.

A map detailing all the monitoring locations referred to in this report is presented in figure 1

below.

Page 19



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Table 1.0 — Details of all locations monitored for NO, in Hagley area

Site Site Address X Y In Relevant | Distance Years
ID Coordinates | Coordinates | AQMA | Exposure to Kerb Monitored
10 77a Park Road, Hagley 391137 280638 Yes Yes 17m 2004 - 2016
11 74 Worcester Lane, Hagley 390295 280043 No Yes 2.75m 2003 - 2016
HL 20 Birmingham Road Road sign 391551 280999 Yes No-13m | 2m 2012 -2016
8 9 Market Way, Hagley 391452 280947 Yes Yes 13.8m 2004 - 2016
9/a/b | 78 Kidderminster Road, Hagley 391210 280668 Yes Yes 8.3m 2004 - 2016

(*Triplicate*)

KR62 | 62 Kidderminster Road 391182 280631 Yes Yes 7m 2012 - 2016

RES1 | 26 Stourbridge Road, Hagley 391445 281179 Yes Yes 15m 2014 - 2016
Downpipe Front of Property

RES 2 | 21 Birmingham Road, Hagley, 391556 281042 Yes Yes 15m 2014 -2016
DY9 9JZ

RES 3 | 104 Kidderminster Road South, 389827 279590 No Yes 14.3m 2014 -2016
Hagley Downpipe Front of
Property

RES 4 | 23 Worcester Road, Hagley DY9 390025 27965 No Yes 14.5m 2014 -2016

OLF Downpipe Front of Property

KR Kidderminster Road, Hagley 391277 280774 Yes No—7m Im 2008 - 2011
(roadside next to no 78 tube nos
9, 9a, 9b)
KR2 10 Kidderminster Road, Hagley 390363 280044 No Yes 13.6m 2010-2011
7 No.5 Stourbridge Road. 391437 281037 Yes Yes 9m 2001 -2011
(@Y Kidderminster Road (Continuous 391354 280919 Yes No —6m 2.5m 2010 (Jun—
Monitor) Dec)

Pagg 20



{ Mhickny, .';,(;:“ @
F K % %

Figure 1.0 — Map of monitoring locations

®

Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Wychbury Obelisk ©

\
Y\“\e‘i i
RS
P o
Na gl \N)V\a

B
5 A 5
{4 o
- slelield Lr &
oHaybndge efield L +
Teaching School ad @Th
Blake | N ©
Hagley s — t@tion o Pk R Hagley Primary School . h 2
5 °
® %
&
&
urch $ &

Page 21

Gay,
* Srook

Lower Clent

o
a,
@ S -
S, % The Fountain @
g, 2,
%er,

0



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

3.2 Monitoring Data and Long-term Trends

Measurements of NO, have been taken over a number of years in the area prior to
declaration of the AQMA and since. As such a robust data set has been built up over a
significant period of time. Available data from monitoring locations has been identified for the
period 2001 to 2016.

The last exceedance of the annual objective was recorded in 2013 at triplicate location 9/a/b
with a level of 40.2ug/m?3. This was a minor exceedance of the 40ug/m? objective. Prior to this
the objective of 40ug/m?® was equalled in 2010 and exceeded in 2007 and 2005 with levels of
42.8ug/m?® at the same location. The annual mean objective was also exceeded at location
11 in 2003 with a recorded value of 40.7ug/m3. It should be noted that 11 is located outside

the area declared as an AQMA. No other exceedances were measured at this location.

Historical data indicates that there were also a number of exceedances at monitoring location
KR between 2008 and 2011. Concentrations here ranged between 54.4ug/m? and 64ug/mé®.
However it should be noted that this monitoring point was located directly adjacent to the
highway and did not represent relevant exposure. It is understood that KR was located
roadside in front of the property 78 Kidderminster Road whilst tubes 9a/b were located on the
facade of the property. Therefore 9a/b represents relevant exposure in this location and is
considered to be a much more accurate representation of conditions. As KR does not
represent relative exposure and given close proximity to the carriageway results here are not
considered to be a relevant exceedance of the objective. Location KR was discontinued at

the end of 2011 because it was not representative of relevant exposure.
In the last three years levels of nitrogen dioxide have been monitored below the annual mean
objective by greater than ten percent (36ug/m?® or less) at all ten monitoring locations within

or near to the AQMA.

Table 2.0 below shows the monitoring results for all locations from 2001 to 2016.

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Table 2.0 — Monitoring results of NO, at location 2001 - 2016

Site | 2001 | 2002 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011

10

11

HL

9/a/b

KR62

RES 1 20.93 | 20.54 | 22.29

RES 2

RES 3 16.56 | 19.35 | 21.71

RES 4

KR*

KR2

i- 235 | 27 | 235|289 24 | 26 | 29 | 225

CM** 38

KR* - Location next to highway and does not represent relative exposure

CM** - Continuous Monitor in use for 6 months not in location representative of relevant exposure

|KEY | NoData | 0-20 | 20-30

Page 23



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

The full set of available monitoring data has been assessed in relation to the number of

exceedances of the annual mean objective for NO, (40pg/m?) and observed levels within 5%
of the annual mean objective (5% AQO) for NO, (38ug/m?®).

Table 3.0 provides details of the number of exceedances of the NO, annual mean air quality

objective between 2001 and 2016 at relevant exposure.

Table 4.0 provides details of the number of concentrations observed within 5% of the NO,

annual mean air quality objective between 2001 and 2016 at relevant exposure.

Table 3.0 - Number of exceedances of NO, annual mean AQO 2001 - 2016

No. exceedances of NO,

Site ID Site Description Annual Mean Objective
(40pg/m°®) at relevant exposure
1
L 74 Worcester Lane, Hagley 2003 — 40.7pg/m3
4
2005 — 42.8ug/m3
9/alb 2007 — 42.8ug/m3

78 Kidderminster Road, Hagley

2010 — 40.0pg/m3
2013 — 40.2ug/m3

Table 4.0 — Number NO;, concentrations observed within 5% AQO 2001 - 2016

Occurrences within 5% of NO,

Site ID Site Description Annual Mean Objective
(38ug/m?) at relevant exposure
1
10 77a Park Road, Hagley 2010 — 38.0pg/m3
4
2004 — 39.3ug/m3
9/alb 2006 — 38.6pg/m3

78 Kidderminster Road, Hagley

2008 — 39.0ug/m3
2009 — 38.0ug/m3

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

It can be seen that over the past fifteen years there have been five monitored exceedances
of the NO, annual mean objective. These have occurred at location 11 in 2003, located
outside the AQMA, and at 9/a/b in 2005, 2007, 2010 and 2013. These exceedances were
only slightly elevated in nature, ranging between 40.0ug/m® and 42.8ug/m?. It has also been
a significant period of time since the majority of these exceedances occurred with the last
being in 2013 with all others being in or prior to 2010.

In addition there have been five occasions over the fifteen year period where NO,
concentrations have been monitored within 5% of the NO, annual mean objective (i.e. above
38ug/m°). These have occurred at tube location 10 in 2010, where a concentration of
38.0ug/m® was measured, and at 9/a/b in 2004, 2006, 2008, and 2009 with concentrations
ranging between 38 and 39.3ug/m®. It is useful to consider concentrations within 5% of the
objective as an indication of how likely it is that the objective might be exceeded in future
years. For example, an area with consistent NO, levels within 5% of the objective is more
likely to see exceedances of the objective associated with meteorological fluctuations than
an area where levels are consistently below 5% of the objective. All of these results referred

to above occurred a significant period of time ago with the last being in 2010.

The above evaluation identifies that within the last six years there has been only one
occasion where the objective has been exceeded and no other instances within 5% of the
NO, annual mean objective. This indicates a significant improvement in air quality in the area

over the duration of the monitoring period.

A series of graphs have been produced to illustrate long-term trends in measured NO,

concentrations at relevant exposure. These are reproduced and discussed below.

Page 25



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Figure 2.0 Monitored Annual Mean NO;at all locations

70

\ —

e 9/a/b

20 .\ /\\ e KR62
< N

e RES 1

—— RES 2

30 1 RES 3

7~ .
) \/\V/\g/ —

10

0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

The graph above provides a diagrammatical representation of monitoring data held for all
locations between 2001 and 2016 reviewed as part of this assessment. The black line
represents the annual mean objective for nitrogen dioxide of 40ug/m?3. It can be seen from
the graph that the vast majority of data falls below the objective. This is with the exception of
KR which was located next to the highway and was not considered to represent relevant

exposure. This is discussed in more detail later in this section.

For clarity separate graphs have been produced for all locations and are presented below
with commentary. Trendlines for the individual tubes have been produced in order to provide
a graphical representation of trends in NO, concentrations at each monitoring location for the
period of operation. It can be seen that generally there has been a consistent downward

trend in NO, concentrations at the locations during the monitoring period.

Pagg 26



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Figure 3.0 - 9/a/b monitored annual mean NO,

9/a/b

50
45

40

35

30

\/V

w0 [a/b

25
20

Linear (9/a/b)

15

10

&
S
D

9/a/b — This monitoring location has b

een in place since 2004. Minor exceedances of the

objective were recorded at this location in 2005, 2007, 2010 and 2013 ranging between

40ug/m?® to 42.8ug/m?3. Levels have been recorded within 5% of the objective from 2004 to

2010. With the exception of 2013 leve

Is of NO, have generally declined at this monitoring

point within the last six years. This can be seen clearly from the trendline on the graph

above.

Figure 4.0 - 11 monitored annual mean NO,

45

11

40
35

30

25

20

e | inear (11)

15
10




Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

11 — This monitoring location has been in place since 2003. In this first year a minor
exceedance of the objective was recorded with a level of 40.7ug/m3. Since then there have
been no further exceedances at this location with only one occasion where the levels were
within 10 percent of the objective, with a level of 36.6ug/m? in 2007. For the last three years
levels here have been recorded over 20% below the objective. The trendline on the graph
above shows a clear decline in concentrations over the monitoring period. It should be noted
that this location is outside of the area declared as an AQMA.

Figure 5.0 - 10 monitored annual mean NO,

10

40
35 7 \ y d—~
30 / \/ \/

25

20 10

15 === inear (10)

10

0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
20012002200320042005200620072008200920102011

T T
20122013201420152016

10 — This location has been monitored since 2004 with no recorded exceedance of the
objective. The highest level recorded was 38ug/m® in 2010. This was the only occasion
where levels reached within 5% of the objective. The trendline on the graph above indicates

that concentrations have remained reasonably stable at this location.

Pagge 28



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Figure 6.0 - KR62 monitored annual mean NO,

KR62

45
40

35

25
20

= KR62

Linear (KR62)
15

10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

KR62 — This location has been monitored since 2012 with no recorded exceedance of the
objective. The highest level recorded was 33.86ug/m?® in 2016. The trendline on the graph
above indicates a slight increase in concentrations although in reality concentrations have

remained largely constant at this location.

Figure 7.0 - 8 monitored annual mean NO,

45

40

35

30 ~
- >\ 7\ A\

N / \ —_—
20 N/ m——

\/ | inear (8)

15

10

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 201020112012 2013 2014 2015 2016

8 - This location has been monitored since 2004 with no recorded exceedance of the
objective. The highest recorded level was 30.3ug/m? in 2007. Levels of nitrogen dioxide have
remained at least 25% and up to 50% below the objective for the majority of the monitoring
duration. A significant decline in concentrations can be seen from the trendline shown on the

graph above.

Page 29



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Figure 8.0 - HL monitored annual mean NO,

HL

45

40

35

30 / \1 _‘7___

25
f —HL

20

e | inear (HL)

15
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

HL - This location has been monitored since 2012 with no recorded exceedance of the
objective. The highest recorded level was 34ug/m® in 2013. The trendline indicates that

concentrations have remained largely stable at this location.

Figure 9.0 — RES 1 - 4 monitored annual mean NO,

RES1-4

45

40

35 —

/

30 e RES 1

e RES 2
25

RES 3

20 ——RES 4

15

10

2014 2015 2016

RES 1 — 4 — These monitoring locations were introduced in 2014. No exceedance of the
objective has been monitored at any of these locations. The highest recorded value was
35.67pg/m?® at RES 4 in 2016. It should be noted that monitoring points RES 3 and RES 4

Pagg 30



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

are located outside of the AQMA boundary. A trendline has not been included for these
locations as they have only been in operation for a relatively short period of time. It can be
seen that there has been a slight increase of concentrations at these locations however they

are all 10% or more beneath the objective.

Figure 10.0 - 7 monitored annual mean NO,

7

40
35

20 | N\
25 M/\

N ~ ~ N
20 -7
15 = Linear (7)
10
5
0 | | | | | | | 1

T T T
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

7 — This location was monitored between 2001 and 2011 and never breached the annual
average objective with a highest concentration of 33.4ug/m® in 2002 and a lowest of
22.5ug/m?® in 2011. A significant decline in concentrations can be seen from the trendline
shown on the graph above.

Figure 11.0 - KR monitored annual mean NO,

KR

70

60 ——

50

40
KR

30 e | inear (KR)

20

10

2008 2009 2010 2011

KR — This location was monitored between 2008 and 2011. KR was located next to the

Kidderminster Road approximately 1m away from traffic. As mentioned previously this

Page 31



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

location did not represent relevant exposure as it was sited on a lamppost very close to the
road and some distance from the nearest property. The highest level of NO, recorded at the

site was 64ug/m?in 2010.

The further assessment carried out in 2012 noted that there was no exceedance of either the
annual mean objective or the 1-hour mean objective at this location because there was no
relevant exposure. In addition the location was not used for verification of the modelling
conducted as part of the further assessment, which stated:-

‘The model output for the study area has been verified against five roadside diffusion tubes
for 2010. Two of the monitoring sites have been excluded from the verification, i.e. the
continuous monitor and diffusion tube site KR. These monitors were located close to the
kerbside and it was considered these sites were not representative of distances from the

road where there is relevant exposure’ (Further Assessment, March 2012 - A2.2).

KR was discontinued at the end of 2011 as part of the yearly diffusion tube rationalisation
program as it did not represent relevant exposure. It was also located near to 9/A/B, which is

sited on the facade of a residential property and therefore did represent relevant exposure.

Figure 12.0 - KR2 monitored annual mean NO,

KR2

45
40
35

25
20 KR2
15
10

2010 2011

KR2 — This location was monitored in 2010 and 2011 and there was no exceedance of the
national objective. The highest recorded level was 31ug/m3. The site was decommissioned
as part of the 2012 rationalisation as it was located in close proximity to 11, a long standing

position, and recorded low values of NO,.

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Automatic Monitor — the continuous air quality monitor was in place between June and
December 2010 with no exceedance of the annual objective. A level of 38ug/m® was
recorded following annualisation of short-term data in line with LAQM Technical Guidance.

The analyser was located approximately 6m away from the nearest relevant receptor.

Pagg 33



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

3.3 Results Discussion

Monitoring results have been assessed for the fifteen year period 2001 to 2016 at all
available monitoring locations. As discussed above only five minor exceedances of the NO,
annual mean objective have been measured during that time. There have also been five
other occasions when measured concentrations fell within 5% of the NO, annual mean

objective.

All of the above instances occurred in 2010 or prior to it with the one exception in 2013. Itis
noted that both 2010 and 2013 saw higher than usual concentrations of NO, both across
Worcestershire and nationally. NO, concentrations are extremely susceptible to
meteorological conditions. Generally higher concentrations are seen on cold, still days
where NO, takes longer to volatise and disperse and lower concentrations on warm, breezier
days where volatilisation and dispersion occur much more rapidly. In 2010 and 2013 the UK
experienced cooler winters than in previous and subsequent years and as such it is very
likely that the higher concentrations of NO, observed during these years can be attributed to
meteorological conditions.

With the exception of the instances outlined above, monitored concentrations of NO, within
the Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA have generally fallen well below the NO, annual
mean objective of 40ug/m®. On the whole levels have also not reached within 5% of the NO,
annual mean objective over the past six years. The highest monitored levels of nitrogen

dioxide recorded within the area for each year are presented in the graph below.

Figure 13.0 — Highest monitored annual mean NO,

Highest

45

40 - /\ /\
// —~— > — — /\

35 N 7 N —
N AV

v

25

20

15

10

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Page 34



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

A consistent downward trend in monitored NO, levels within the AQMA can be observed over
the past fifteen years when viewing all locations. This downward trend may be attributed to
any number of factors however the most significant is likely to be the general trend of
increasingly mild winters combined with minor improvements in emissions associated with a
modernised vehicle fleet. In addition factors such as improvements made to the local
highway network and changes in travel behaviours, such as small increases in uptake of

cycling and walking, will have also contributed to any improvement in NO, concentrations.

When the highest recorded values are compared with the lowest recorded values and
average concentrations from all monitoring locations a distinct pattern in year on year
fluctuations can be observed. These patterns fit with the observations made above relating to
changes in meteorological conditions. The peaks are seen in years with colder winters such
as 2010 and 2013 with lower concentrations in years with more mild weather conditions. A
distinct downward trend comparable across all values is particularly noticeable when plotted
in a diagrammatic form as can be seen on the graph below. Average values have been

presented with and without KR for comparison.

Figure 14.0 — Comparison of Highest, Lowest and Average NO, Values

Highest, Lowest and Average Values Comparison

45

N\ /\
/ 7 N \
) W\/ N
N\

40

——— Average without KR

\/ \f —— Linear (Highest)

Linear (Lowest)

20

15

Linear (Average

without KR)
10

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T |
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Page 35



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

4 Conclusions and Recommendations

Assessment of the available monitoring data from all monitoring locations in and around the
Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA has been undertaken. A small number of marginal
exceedances of the annual mean objective for nitrogen dioxide have been observed. All of
these have taken place prior to 2010 with one exception in 2013. Therefore there has been
one marginal exceedance of the objective from a maximum of ten monitored locations in the
last six years. Analysis of all available data indicates a downward trend in concentrations of

nitrogen dioxide.

The Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA declaration was made based on marginal
exceedances of the NO, annual mean objective in 2010. It is likely that the advent of
increasingly mild winters over recent years combined with modernisations of the general
vehicle fleet have resulted in concentrations of NO, that consistently fall well below the NO,
annual mean objective. It is possible that particularly cold winters may result in the
occasional marginal exceedances of the NO, annual mean objective however current
understanding of the UK climate suggests that milder winters are likely to continue.
Therefore any marginal exceedance of the NO, annual mean objective associated with
possible occasional colder winters will be isolated. Consistent exceedances of the NO,
annual mean objective over future years are considered unlikely, as demonstrated by the
lack of consistent exceedances between 2001 and 2016 and a consistent downward trend in

NO, concentrations across that same fifteen year period.

In addition, measures that have been implemented in the area as part of the Air Quality
Action Plan (detailed in section 2 above) should also continue to have a positive impact on
air quality. Improvements have been made to the phasing of traffic lights in the area which
has included upgrading to the latest technology available. Traffic signals have also been
introduced at the Hagley Island roundabout with additional alignment revisions. Other
actions, such as Variable Message Signage, are also due for roll out in the near future
subject to the appropriate funding. All of which are considered to offer a gradual betterment

to air quality over future years.

These improvement works have formed the basis of the Action Plan for the Kidderminster
Road, Hagley AQMA and WRS will continue to be heavily involved to ensure that
improvements to air quality are realised. This is in accordance with PG(16) para. 4.11
“Following a revocation, ideally the local authority should put in place a local air quality

strategy (para 2.12) to ensure air quality remains a high profile issue...”

Pagg 36



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

It is therefore recommended that Bromsgrove District Council consider revocation of the

Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA.

LAQM Technical and Policy Guidance sets out some requirements in relation to revocation of

AQMAs. These are summarised in the table below and evidence for each point provided.

Table 5.0 — Revocation Requirements LAQM.PG(16) and LAQM.TG(16)

LAQM revocation requirement laid out in
PG(16) and TG(16)

Evidence in relation to Kidderminster
Road, Hagley AQMA

PG(16) 4.9 “Demonstrate that air quality
objectives are being met and will continue to
do so... Confidence that the improvements
will be sustained...Typically this is after three
years or more of compliance.

There has been no measured exceedance of
the NO, annual mean objective at relevant
exposure in the last three years.

There has been no measured concentration
of NO, within 5% of the NO, annual mean
objective at relevant exposure in the last
three years.

Generally concentrations of NO, have
consistently been below the NO, annual
mean objective at relevant exposure over the
past fifteen years, with five exceptions.
Marginal exceedances of 40.2ug/m?in 2013,
40.0pg/m3 in 2010, 42.8ug/m® in 2007 and
2005, and 40.7ug/m® in 2003. These
concentrations are likely associated with
cooler winters and are consistent with
observed higher concentrations across the
County and nationally in those years.

Generally concentrations of NO, have
consistently been below 95% of the NO,
annual mean objective at relevant exposure
over the past fifteen years, with a few
exceptions. These occurred in 2010, 2009,
2008, 2006 and 2004.

There has been a consistent downward trend
in NO, concentrations at all monitoring
locations within the AQMA over the past ten
years.

TG(16) 3.46 & 3.47 “In most cases the
decision to revoke an AQMA should only be
taken following a detailed study....however,
in some instances if compelling evidence
exists, detailed modelling to support the
decision to ..revoke an AQMA may not be
necessary and an AQMA may be amended
or revoked following a screening assessment

Detailed dispersion modelling has not been
undertaken in this case. It is considered that
the fifteen years of monitoring data available
across numerous monitoring locations
provides sufficiently robust evidence on
which to carry out a screening assessment,
particularly considering the very small
number of measured exceedances of the

Page 37




Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

on the basis of robust monitoring evidence.

NO, annual mean objective.

The Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA has
only seen three exceedances of the NO,
annual mean objective at relevant exposure
in the past decade, and none since 2013.
Since 2011 there has been only a single
breach and no  occasions  where
concentrations were within 5% of the NO,
annual mean objective. It is considered to be
disproportionate to carry out full detailed
dispersion modelling in relation to any
decision regarding revocation.

As a result a detailed screening assessment
has been undertaken and is presented in this
report.

TG(16) 3.48 “... pollutant concentrations may
vary significantly from one year to the next,
due to the influence of meteorological
conditions, and it is important that authorities
avoid cycling between declaring, revoking
and declaring again, due simply to these
variations. Therefore, before revoking an
AQMA on the basis of measured pollutant
concentrations, the authority therefore needs
to be reasonably certain that any future
exceedances (that might occur in more
adverse meteorological conditions) are
unlikely. For this reason, it is expected that
authorities will need to consider
measurements carried out over several years
or more, national trends in emissions, as well
as local factors that may affect the AQMA,
including measures introduced as part of the
Air Quality Action Plan, together with
information from national monitoring on high
and low pollution years”

It is acknowledged that the influence of
meteorological conditions is a significant
factor when considering revocation of an
AQMA. As discussed above it is considered
likely that the most recent exceedances of
the NO, annual mean objective observed
within the AQMA are likely to be attributable
to cooler winters in 2013 and 2010. The
trend for higher concentrations in these years
can been seen both locally and nationally.

However, in considering that NO,
concentrations in the AQMA are generally
measured to be well below the NO, annual
mean objective and well below 95% of the
NO, annual mean obijective, it is considered
to be very unlikely that changing
meteorological conditions would produce any
consistent exceedance of the NO, annual

mean objective that would require re-
declaration of an AQMA in the future.
Particularly ~ considering  the current

understanding of climate and the predicted
increase in warmer winters across the UK
going forward.

In addition the traffic signalling and
roundabout improvements made to the road
network in this area is considered to have
improved traffic flow and reduced congestion
through the existing AQMA area, having a
positive impact on air quality. This planned
improvement work formed the basis of the
Action Plan for the AQMA and WRS will
continue to be involved in it's development to
ensure that air quality remains a high profile
issue and ensure that improvements to air
guality are realised.

Pagg 38




Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

In conclusion it is recommended that Bromsgrove District Council consider revocation of the
Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA. There have been limited exceedances of the NO,
annual mean objective between 2001 and 2016 with the majority taking place prior to and
including 2010. Only one minor exceedance of the objective has been recorded in the last six
years. This was a level of 40.2ug/m3 in 2013. It is considered to be very unlikely that any

consistent exceedance of the NO, annual mean objective will occur in the future.

Air Quality will remain an important high profile issue in the area in order to ensure that
concentrations of NO, remain below the objective. The area will continue to be an “air quality
consultation zone” within the WRS Planning Checklist ensuring that air quality is given due
consideration through the planning process. In addition WRS will continue to be involved in
the development of measures throughout the wider Bromsgrove District as per the Air Quality

Action Plan.

Page 39



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Appendices

Pagg 40



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Appendix A: Summary of Statutory Air Quality
Objectives in England

A.l1 — Air Quality Objectives in England

Air Quality Objective’

Pollutant :
Concentration Measured as

200 pg/m* not to be exceeded more
than 18 times a year
40 pg/m?® Annual mean

Nitrogen Dioxide 1-hour mean

(NO2)

50 pug/m?>, not to be exceeded more

than 35 times a year 24-hour mean

Particulate Matter

(PMso) 40 pg/m?® Annual mean
350 pg/m?, not to be exceeded more
. 1-hour mean
than 24 times a year
Sulphur Dioxide 125 pg/m?®, not to be exceeded more
: 24-hour mean
(S0y) than 3 times a year

266 pg/m°, not to be exceeded more

than 35 times a year 15-minute mean

! The units are in microgrammes of pollutant per cubic metre of air (pg/m3).

Page 41



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Appendix B: Kidderminster Road, Hagley AQMA
Sealed Order

Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83(1)

Bromsgrove District Council
AQMA Order

Bromsgrove District Council in exercise of the powers conferred upon it by
Section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, hereby makes the following Order.

This Order may be cited/referred to as the Bromsgrove District Council Air
Quality Management Area No 2, and shall come into effect on \"\w \-/t\ox‘wu’}—g)-c"\c’

The area shown on the attached map in red is to be designated as an air
quality management area (the designated area). The designated area
incorporates part of Kidderminster Road, Stourbridge Road and Hagley Hill,
Hagley. The map may be viewed at the Council Offices.

This Area is designated in relation to a likely breach of the nitrogen dioxide
(annual mean) objective as specified in the Air Quality Regulations 2000

This Order shall remain in force until it is varied or revoked by a subsequent
order.

The Common Seal of Bromsgrove District Council
was hereto affixed on 'l } oxfxioand signed

in the presence of /on behalf
of said Council

Page 42
32



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

€ 7 ﬂ’}/os ‘) ,59/?,

A
_

SaljdN 029

e}

=

Q%

neseyy jovaidwe |

Le SS1

Wed Aojbey

AN TIVH

o &
8]
~ (=]
a )
o\P| @
!
il
4 )
) i
S g
<
o h m
v
2
=)
o

(0L07) 615€Z000L
11PUNo) 11AsIQ 9A016swolg sBuipaadold [1A1 1o uopndasoid
01 peaj Aew pue 1y6ukdod umor) sabuljul uononpoidas pazuoyineun
YBLAdoD umo.) @ 220 Klauoness s Aisalepy
J49H 4O 12]1011U0D) AU JO Jleyaq uo AdAINS 3dUBUPIO JO LoIsSIWIAd
43 Yaim [elIRW ADAING 2dURUPIQ WOy padNpoidal 5| dew siy)

As|6eH ‘YWOV
peoy Ja1suiuisppiy

AN'A0G'9A0IBSWOIG MMM

3ad ONIQUNG |IPUNOY 11ISIg

A~ anocibswoug

Page 43

33




Bromsgrove District Council

Appendix C: Diffusion Tube Monitoring

C.1 Details of Non-Automatic Monitoring Sites

Site Site Description Site Type X 0S Y OS Pollutants In Distance to Distance to kerb of | Tube collocated with a Height
ID Grid Ref Grid Ref Monitored AQMA? | Relevant E()i)posure nearest road (m) © Continuous Analyser? (m)
(m)
10 77a Park Road, Hagley Urban 391137 280638 Yes 0
Background NO, 17 N 1.93
11 74 Worcester Lane, Hagley Roadside 390295 280043 NO, No 0
2.75 N 1.88
HL 20 Birmingham Rd Sign Roadside 391551 280999 NO- Yes 13 9 N 188
my) 8 9 Market Way, Hagley Roadside 391452 280947 Yes 0
Q NO, 13.8 N 1.88
«Q
M | 9/alb 78 Kidderminster Road, Roadside 391210 280668 NO- Yes 0
8.3 N 1.98
HAN Hagley
i
KR62 62 Kidderminster Road Roadside 391182 280631 NO, Yes 0 - " 1.08
RES 26 Stourbridge Rd, Hagle Roadside 391445 281179 Yes 0
: uronag gey NO, 15 N 2.10
RES 21 Birmingham Road, Roadside 391556 281042 Yes 0
NO; 15 N 2.20
2 Hagley
RES 104 Kidderminster Road Roadside 389827 279590 NO- No 0
14.3 N 2.00
3 South, Hagley
RES 23 Worcester Road, Hagley Roadside 390025 27965 NO; No 0
4 14.5 n 2.10
KR Kidderminster Road, Hagley Kerbside 391277 280774 Yes 7
(roadside outside no 78) NO; 1 N

34

G wa)| epuaby



G obed

Bromsgrove District Council

Site Site Description Site Type X 0S Y OS Pollutants In Distance to Distance to kerb of | Tube collocated with a Height
ID Grid Ref Grid Ref Monitored AQMA? Relevant E()i)posure nearest road (m) @ Continuous Analyser? (m)
(m)
KR2 10 Kidderminster Road, Roadside 390363 280044 NO- No 0
Haal 13.6 N
gley
7 No.5 Stourbridge Road. Background 391437 281037 NO, Yes 0 9 N
CM Kidderminster Road Kerbside 391354 280919 Yes 6
NO- 25 n/a

35

G wa)| epuaby



Bromsgrove District Council

C.2 Monitoring Data 2001 — 2016

NO, Annual Mean Concentration (ug/m®) &7
Site ID
2001 | 2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016
10 27.7 | 334 | 31.7 | 33.3 34 37 38 37.6 | 29.65| 37 |32.01 | 30.22 | 33.52
11 40.7 | 31.1 | 343 | 31.7 | 36.6 32 35 34 315 | 24.71 33 | 29.87 | 27.68 | 31.28
HL 21.49 34 | 25.48 | 25.92 | 28.65
8 25.8 | 28.7 | 26.6 | 30.3 23 25 28 22.1 | 16.17 27 | 20.42 | 20.01 | 21.88
9/a/b 39.3 | 428 | 38.6 | 42.8 39 38 40 37.2 | 27.51 | 40.2 | 33.65 | 32.44 | 34.49
KR62 28.24 | 33 | 31.76 | 32.17 | 33.86
g-? RES 1 20.93 | 20.54 | 22.29
«Q
:Z RES 2 31.31 | 32.26 | 34.72
(@]
RES 3 16.56 | 19.35 | 21.71
RES 4 31.43 | 32.70 | 35.67
KR 61 63 64 54.4
KR2 31 30.2
7 30.2 | 334 | 31.7 | 235 27 235 | 28.9 24 26 29 225
CM 38

(1) Means for diffusion tubes have been corrected for bias. All means have been “annualised” as per Technical Guidance LAQM.TG16 if valid data capture
for the full calendar year is less than 75%.

36

G wa)| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

Glossary of Terms

Abbreviation Description

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures,
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods,
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit
values’

AQMA Air Quality Management Area — An area where air pollutant
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and

objectives
AQO Air Quality Objective
Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
EU European Union
LAQM Local Air Quality Management
NO- Nitrogen Dioxide
NOx Nitrogen Oxides
QA/QC Quiality Assurance and Quality Control

Page 47
37



Agenda Iltem 5

Bromsgrove District Council

References

1. Air Quality Consultants (2012) ‘Further Assessment Kidderminster Road, Hagley for

Bromsgrove District Council’
2. DEFRA (2016) ‘Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance LAQM PG.(16)’
3. DEFRA (2016) ‘Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance LAQM TG.(16)’

4. Worcestershire Regulatory Services (2013) ‘Air Quality Action Plan for

Worcestershire’

5. Worcestershire Regulatory Services (2015) ‘Air Quality Action Plan Progress Report
for Worcestershire April 2013-April 2015’

6. Worcestershire Regulatory Services (2016) ‘Air Quality Action Plan Progress Report
for Worcestershire April 2015 — March 2016’

7. Worcestershire Regulatory Services (2016) ‘Annual Status Report — Bromsgrove
District Council’

8. Worcestershire Regulatory Services Website

http://www.worcsregservices.qgov.uk/pollution/air-quality/

Page 48
38


http://www.worcsregservices.gov.uk/pollution/air-quality/

Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 7" March 2018

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT

Councillor G N Denaro, Leader of the Council
e e e
Enabling)
Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes
Relevant Head of Service Deb Poole, Head of Transformation & OD
Ward(s) Affected All wards
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted N/A
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision No

1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS

To review performance information relating to a set of key corporate measures
and the strategic purpose ‘Keep my place safe and looking good'.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to note the contents of the report and associated appendix
(Appendix 1).

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 Effective performance management will enable the Council to use limited
resources in a more targeted manner, maximising the value of Council services
and allowing the Council to be even more responsive to our customers’ needs.

Legal Implications

3.2  There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Service / Operational Implications

3.3  Using performance data enables the Council to understand if it is working
towards the strategic purposes and delivering the priority actions set out in the
Council Plan.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.4  The strategic purposes are from a customers’ perspective, so relevant and
robust performance data will enable the Council to understand if it is delivering
what matters to customers, as identified through the Council Plan.

Page 49



Agenda Iltem 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET 7" March 2018

3.5 There are no equality and diversity implications arising directly from this report;
however, the importance of understanding how the Council performs for all
residents is important.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1  Using data to ensure the Council meets the strategic purposes and delivers on
the priority actions in the Council Plan will support the management of risks
identified around the delivery of those strategic purposes. The reviewing of
performance data also contributes to a robust and effective decision making
process.

5. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Corporate Performance Report (Keep My Place Safe and Looking
Good) March 2018

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Tracy Beech, Policy Officer
email: tracy.beech@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
Tel.: 01527 548247

Page 50



11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Agendaritetn16

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT: ‘KEEP MY PLACE SAFE
AND LOOKING GOOD’ — 7th MARCH 2018

INTRODUCTION

This bi-monthly report highlights the key areas for the strategic purpose ‘keep my
place safe and looking good'.

This report also contains key organisational measures and performance towards
the outcomes identified in the Council Plan. It will complement the use of the
Corporate Measures Dashboard, the tool used for understanding and reporting
our measures.

MARCH 2018 — AREA OF FOCUS

There is no specific area of focus for this period for ‘keep my place safe and
looking good’.

Strategic Measures

The following strategic measures are currently used to understand the purpose
‘keep my place safe and looking good’:

# anti-social behaviour incidents (all ASB from April 2015)

# anti-social behaviour incidents by area (all ASB from April 2015)
Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 4)
Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 5)
Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 6)
Kg of waste collected per month per household by waste type

Community Safety Strategic Measures Charts

# anti-social behaviour incidents (all ASB from April 2015)
Contact: Bev Houghton, Community Services Manager

Bromsgrove - # antisocial behaviour incidents (all ASB from April 2015)

350—

00—

250—

Number

202
200— =

150—

A
M
J
A
5
8]
M
D
J
E
M
A
M.
J
A
T Sop-16-]
[s)
M
D
J
E
]
A
]
J
A
8
0
Mo




2.3.1 The ASB chart is split seasonally as there is a marked an

2.3.2

2.3.3

2.4

AgendapbtemmG

airly regular
difference in the numbers of incidents recorded during the summer and winter
months. Splitting the chart causes the upper and lower control limits to more
accurately identify unpredictable variation, and as such, where further
investigation may be required.

Whilst it was still within the upper control limit, there was a peak of anti-social
behaviour incidents in July 2017 which was highlighted to the Safer Bromsgrove
meeting. As a consequence it was determined that the rise was driven by one
individual, a young person, who was subsequently dealt with by the police
through the trial use of a Warning Notice and work with the parents. The lessons
learnt from this case were discussed at Safer Bromsgrove for assisting with
future youth ASB.

# anti-social behaviour incidents by area (all ASB from April 2015)
Contact: Bev Houghton, Community Services Manager

Bromsgrove - # antisocial behaviour incidents by area (from April 2015)

120 —— Alvechurch & Wythall

=== Bromsgrove North & Rural
= Bromsgrove South & Rural
= Bromsgrove St Johns

100— Hagley & Rubery

80—

60—

Nurmber

40—

20—

Date

The data used for these measures is collected by West Mercia Police and is
processed by the Home Office and Ministry of Justice before publication. This
creates a lag in receiving the data of 2 months.

Environmental Services Strategic Measures Charts

For reference, this table shows the ward areas contained in each Place Area.

Place 4

Aston Fields, Avoncroft, Bromsgrove Central, Charford, Hill Top, Norton,
Rock Hil, Sanders Park, Slideslow and Tardebigge Wards

Place 5

Alvechurch South, Alvechurch Village, Barnt Green and Hopwood, Cofton,
Drakes Cross, Hollywood, Lickey Hills, Rubery North, Rubery South,
Wythall East and Wythall West Wards

Place 6

Belbroughton and Romsley, Catshill North, Catshill South, Hagley East,
Hagley West, Lowes Hill, Marlbrook, Perryfields and Sidemoor Wards

Page 52




AgendapbﬁecﬂmG

Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 4)
Contact: Matthew Austin, Environmental Senior Improvements Officer

Bromsgrove - Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 4)

200— W Trees
Dog fouling

I Litter

I Hedge/shrub

[N Fly tipping

I Bulky collection

Number

Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 5)
Contact: Matthew Austin, Environmental Senior Improvements Officer

Bromsgrove - Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 5)

250— B Trees
Dog fouling

I Litter

Il Hedge/shrub

[ Fly tipping

I EBulky collection

Number

Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 6)
Contact: Matthew Austin, Environmental Senior Improvements Officer

Bromsgrove - Environmental Services: Top 5 high profile demands & bulky collections (Place 6)

200— I Trees

Dog fouling
I Litter
Il Hedge/shrub
N Fly tipping
I Bulky collection

Number

Page 53



Agpendapbﬁecan
Kg of waste collected per month per household by waste type
Contact: Anna Wardell-Hill, Waste Policy & Promotions Manager

Bromsgrove - Kg of waste collected per month per household by waste type

120 B Garden
I Recycling
I Residual

100—

80—

60—

Kg

40—

20—

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

Date

Context

2.5 Community Safety

2.5.1 Bromsgrove District Council is a member of the North Worcestershire
Community Safety Partnership. This partnership consists of three operational
groups; Safer Bromsgrove, Safer Redditch and Safer Wyre Forest.

2.5.2 Safer Bromsgrove is one of the operational groups that exist to ensure local
issues and concerns remain at the centre of the Partnership’s priorities, projects
and campaigns. At a local level the group deals with community safety issues
and anti-social behaviour. Measures data is regularly reported to the group and
spikes in crime types are further drilled down. An example of this is alcohol rated
anti-social behaviour was identified by the group and consequently a local Pub
Watch group was established and recently the use of Face Watch was
introduced, an online information sharing platform that allows the police, licensed
premises and businesses to share crime prevention and community safety
information and intelligence to other members in a confidential way. The group
is responsible for delivering local actions from the Partnership Plan.

2.5.3 The group discusses community safety issues brought to their attention and use
a problem solving approach to identify short term actions to address these and
allocate resources accordingly. In addition they also promote public reassurance
and engage with media on different aspects of community safety.

2.6 Place Teams

2.6.1 The Place Teams provide many of the core services that our residents expect
from the Council, and are arguably the most visible element of our Strategic
Purpose, as they have ownership for the aesthetic appearance of our district
through litter picking, fly tip removal, litter bin emptying, and grass cutting of
Worcestershire County Council’s highway verges.

2.6.2 Fly tipping is one of our largest issues, and takes a considerable amount of
resource to manage, with approximately £70,000 spent managing the problem in
2016/17, and expenditure up to December 2017/18 of approximately £50,000. A
successful prosecution based op#gevBuk of our Enforcement Officer led to



2.6.3

2.6.4

2.6.5

Agendapbmmn16

financial penalties of £2250, 80 Hours community service,"and a 10 week
suspended sentence for a fly tipper in December, and we hope to build on this in
2018 with more enforcement actions to both catch and deter those responsible.

Litter is a constant challenge nationally as well as locally, and our main issues
with this are along our northern borders where we see a high volume of
commuters passing through our district. We are looking at options to raise
awareness of this as a crime during 2018, through the use of signs informing
road users of the costs and impact that their drinks bottles have. This will be tied
in with our communications team to make use of social media and local
newspapers. We are also looking to see how we may be able to involve local
schools, and have already had communication with the deputy head of North
Bromsgrove High School regarding talking at one of their assemblies after some
of their pupils were seen to be littering in the town centre before Christmas.

The Place Teams support a number of initiatives to involve the public in
maintaining their area, with formal national events such as “Clean for the Queen”
(2016) and “The Great British Spring Clean” (2017) promoted by the Keep Britain
Tidy Group, and more local events run by Parish Councils and other local groups
to tackle specific issues in their areas. In 2017 there were 6 such events across
the district that we supported with the loan of equipment, and collection of the
waste collected, each involving 10 — 15 people. We also have 5 regular
volunteers operating across the district that we have given long term loans of a
litter picker and our blue bags so that they can work with us to support their local
area over and above the services we provide. Please see below two links that
are currently on the BDC website:-

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/my-place/street-cleaning/litter-pickers-want-to-get-
involved.aspx - this is our page

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/living/volunteering/volunteering-outdoors/arrange-a-
community-litter-pick.aspx - this is advertising the Great British Spring Clean.

The Place Teams have been in place since June 2015, and have seen increases
in demand on many of their services in that time. Previously operating on a 3
team delivery model for bulky collections, they have now moved to a single
district wide team for this element of the service as a result of increased demand.
This change is not fully reflected in the measures charts, but has been included
below as combined figures for this financial year to date.

300 .
Bulky Collections 2017
250
200 -
December
2017 saw
150 - considerably
reduced
100 - e
to snow and
50 - ice.
0 = T T T T T T T T ._\
S S N & & & &
ol N R P N
o Q\Q OO OAQ) 600
? < Q

Page 55


http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/my-place/street-cleaning/litter-pickers-want-to-get-involved.aspx
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/my-place/street-cleaning/litter-pickers-want-to-get-involved.aspx
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/living/volunteering/volunteering-outdoors/arrange-a-community-litter-pick.aspx
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/living/volunteering/volunteering-outdoors/arrange-a-community-litter-pick.aspx

2.6.6

2.7

2.7.1

2.7.2

2.7.3

2.7.4

2.7.5

2.7.6

2.7.7

2.8

Agendapb'eemmG

The main priority for 2018 will be to maintain our existing Services and push for
improvements on certain key areas such as our grass cutting that have not been
as consistent as we would have liked in 2016 and 2017, but we expect to
continue evolving to reflect the demands that arise throughout the year.

Waste and Recycling

The measures selected to reflect the success of the household waste collection
service, have been chosen so that they are indicating per household what is
being disposed of month by month. These measures are more useful than
recycling rate and tonnage alone as increasing household numbers will
undoubtedly increase overall waste. Increasing tonnage in recycling can also be
masked by increasing residual tonnage when focusing on a recycling rate. By
normalising the statistics in this manner, it is easier to identify which elements of
the waste stream require additional attention.

An increase in residual kilograms per household is not favourable. Whilst an
increase in recyclable or garden waste is preferable, this must also be balanced
with the requirement to reduce waste by as far as possible.

Planned changes include targeting communal bin users to focus on recycling by
providing storage for recycling within the home and also assisting housing to
tender for more suitable storage solutions for communal bin residencies.

Crews briefings and increased vigilance with tagging for unacceptable recycling
bins took place in September. Further initiatives using bin tags to target and
educate individual householders are planned to move weight from the residual
bin into the recycling bins.

Current recycling rate stands at around 46.5% for April — December 2018. It is
important to concentrate of the quality of the recycling being collected. Sampling
at the sorting facility has identified the last 6 months showed an average 9.89%
of waste sampled from Bromsgrove residents was incorrect material.

Residual waste is currently around 4% less when compared with the same
period last year and is following the usual annual patterns.

Garden Waste collections will start again week commencing 26 February 2018.

Engagement/Research

A survey of the Bromsgrove Community Panel was undertaken in October 2017.
The survey was sent to 634 panel members either electronically or through a
postal survey. The response rate for the survey was 45.8%. This survey
included questions relating to ‘keep my place safe and looking good’. Further
analysis of the survey data is due to be undertaken and will be issued to relevant
officers and Members in due course.

Examples:

| feel safe outside in my local area... ... during daylight ... after dark
| agree strongly 26.8% 8.8%

| agree 58.4% 38.6%

| neither agree nor disagree 12.0% 29.1%

| disagree 2.0% 17.9%

| disagree strongly Dana CA 0.8% 5.6%



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

Agendaritetn16

| understand what | can place in my green recycling bin:

| agree strongly 39.2%
| agree 48.5%
| neither agree nor disagree 6.0%
| disagree 5.2%
| disagree strongly 1.1%

KEY CORPORATE MEASURES SUITE

The following key measures are currently used by the organisation to better
understand the corporate picture.

Sickness Data

In order to support the organisation to capture as comprehensive a set of
sickness data as possible, a new online self-serve module has been
implemented as part of the HR21 system. The module allows managers to input
sickness data directly into the system rather than completing paper records. This
reduces rekeying of data by the Payroll Service and enables associated records,
e.g. doctors notes, to be stored in one place.

As can be seen from the tables below, the new system was implemented during
December 2016 and January 2017. Initially, there was a drop in recorded data
as staff were introduced to the new system. However, after delivering a number
of training sessions to managers this has returned to pre system levels.

The recording, monitoring and reporting of sickness will continue to be developed
and improved upon. As part of the HR & OD Strategy and HR & OD Project
Action Plan, work is being undertaken to review the Sickness Absence Policy
and Procedures. This work is being carried out in conjunction with managers
and Heads of Service. The 2016/17 figure was 8.01 days per FTE (full time
equivalent); the figure for 2017/18 will not be available until April 2018. In
comparison the national figures, according to ‘Xpert HR’ are 9.1 days per FTE in
the public sector and 5.1 days per FTE in the private sector.

Long/Short Term Sickness Absence
Contact: Nicola Wright, Assistant HR & OD Advisor

Both Authorities - Long/short term sickness absence

1000 — N Long Term Absence
I Short Term Absence

800—

B00—

Number of Days

400—

200—

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm




Long Term Sickness Absence by service area (by FTE)

Agendaritetn16

Contact: Nicola Wright, Assistant HR & OD Advisor

# days lost (per FTE)

500—

400—

Both Authorities - LONG TERM sickness by service area (by FTE)

Business Transformation
Chief Executive Unit
I Community Services
Customer Services
I Environmental
Legal & Democratic
I Leisure & Culture
I Planning & Regeneration
I WRS
I Finance

Date

Short Term Sickness Absence by service area (by FTE)
Contact: Nicola Wright, Assistant HR & OD Advisor

# days lost (per FTE)

300—

250—

Both Autherities - SHORT TERM sickness by service area (by FTE)

Business Transformation

Chief Executive Unit
I Community Services

Customer Services

I Envircnmental
Legal & Democratic
I Leisure & Culture

I Planning & Regeneration
. RS
I Finance

Page 58



Agendaritetn16

Payments and Collection Data

Customer Services: Total cash office payments
Contact: Maria Wright, Deputy Customer Services Manager

Bromsgrove - Customer Services: Total cash office payments

3000—

2500—

2000—

Nurmber

1500—

1000

3.1.4 We are generally seeing a reducing in payments through the cash office as
people move to more modern payment methods. Between the months of October
to December there was a reduction in payments for Council Tax, Business Rates
and Sundry invoices. This is a seasonal trend and payments are expected to
increase again in January due to garden waste invoices.

Customer Services: # payments by method of payment
Contact: Maria Wright, Deputy Customer Services Manager

Bromsgrove - Customer Services: # payments by method of payment

12000 — Il BACS and Transfers
Post
N Internet

Automated Telephone (all
10000 — services)
Il Assisted Telephone (all services)

I Card (Cash Desks)
I Cheques
2000 —| I Cash

Number

4000 I I I I

2000+

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

uuuuuu

Date

3.1.5 Although payments through the cash office are reducing, the numbers of
payments to the Council are higher in the last quarter compared with 2016. We
have seen a slight increase in BACS (mainly Direct Debits) payments and a
reduction in cash payments. BACS/Direct Debit is the most cost effective
payment method for the Council and work is on-going to continue to increase
take up.

Page 59



Agendaritetn16

Customer Services: # payments by fund type
Contact: Maria Wright, Deputy Customer Services Manager

Bromsgrove - Customer Services: # payments by fund type

10000 — Planning
. VPP
Council Tax
I Suilding Control
NNDR
8000 — I Licensing
I Parking Fines
I Sundry Debts
I TaxiLicensing

6000—

Nurnber

4000—

2000—

Date

3.1.6 Council tax payments are, unsurprisingly, the highest demand, for the majority of
the year. The impact of the garden waste invoices can clearly be seen but this no
longer results in a huge spike in payments at the cash office as people are
choosing other payment methods.

Revenues: Council tax collection rate
Contact: Debbie Crouch, Senior Revenues Officer

Bromsgrove - Revenues: Council Tax collection rate

100 I 2015/16
201617
. 207718

80—

60—

40—

20—

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Date

3.1.7 Due to the systems conversion there have been more issues than normal around
our recovery process and this has resulted in a slight dip in the collection date for
this financial year. An action plan is in place for rectifying the issues.

Page 60



Agendaritetn16

Revenues: NNDR collection rate
Contact: Debbie Crouch, Senior Revenues Officer

Bromsgrove - Revenues: NNDR Collection Rate

100+ I 2015/16
2016017
. 207718

80—

60—

40—

20—

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Date

3.1.8 Due to the systems conversion there have been more issues than normal around
our recovery process and this has resulted in a slight dip in the collection date for
this financial year. An action plan is in place for rectifying the issues.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 21st February 2018
	5 Air Quality Management Area - Kidderminster Road, Hagley - Potential Revocation
	Kidderminster Road Hagley Revocation Screening Assessment FINAL

	6 Performance Report
	DRAFT Corporate Performance Report Cabinet 070318 Appendix 1 LG vLeaders updated 23 02 18


